Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

L

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) , changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3-

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the standalone financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion .

Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw your attention to Note 31 to the standalone financial statements, which describes the management’s
assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the
Company. The management believes that no adjustments are required in the standalone financial statements
as it does not impact the current financial year. However, in view of the highly uncertain economie
environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon
circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls..

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10.We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

11. The

financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 and the transition date opening

balance sheet as at April 1, 2020 included in these Ind AS standalone financial statements, are based on the
previously issued statutory standalone financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31,
2020 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which
were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated July 9, 2021 and August 14, 2020
respectively. The adjustments to those standalone financial statements for the differences in accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us

Our

opinion is not modified in respect of above matter

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

()

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
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14..

ii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the standalone Bnancial slatements,

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which Lhere
were any malerial foréseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were retuired o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the yeéar ended March 31,2022

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of'its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts, no funds have been advineed or loaned or invested {either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreipn entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entitieg identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or thelike on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries {Refer Note 42 to the standalone financial statements);

{b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the

notes to the aeeounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entitics (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing.or otherwise, that the Company shall; whether, directly or indirectly, lend of invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on béhalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial stalements); and

() Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

cireumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representiations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstalement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

The Company has paid for managerial remuneration to the directors in accordance with the provisions of
Seclion 197 réad with Schedule V to the Act. Further, as stated in Note 34 to the standalone financial
statements, the Company: proposes to obtain required approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual
general meeting for remuneration aggregating to 26.11 Lakhs paid to the directors.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Aceountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/Ns00016

N

Vivian Pillai
Partner

PMace: Melbourne, Australia Membership Number: 127791
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22127701AJVYZHA4300
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Allygrow Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on'the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements.

[T;"atf'r >
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

0.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for extérnal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's interial finanecial controls with reference to standalone
financial slalements includes those policies and procedures thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepied
accounting. principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and direclors of the ecompany; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance reégarding prevention or timely deteclion of unauthorised acquisilion, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to findaneial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
siatements, including the possibility of collusien or improper management override of conirols,
malerial misstatemeénts due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal finaneial controls with reference to staridalone financial statements to future
periods are subjeel to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of complianée
with the policies.or procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intérnal financial controls system
with reference to standalone financial statements and such inlernal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022 based on the internal

‘control over financial reporling eriteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL Also refer paragraph 4 of the
main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accounlants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754 N/N500016

=

Vivian Pillai
Partner

Place: Melbourne, Australia Membership Number: 127791
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22127701 AJVYZH 4300
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i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the

(c)

Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 4 of the
standalone financial statements). Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

(e)

ii. (a)

(b)

iii. (a)

assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or
specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net
carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial
statements does not arise.

The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company has not made any investments, granted loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any investments, granted loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood

(c)

guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated by the Company for one subsidiary. In respect of the loans, no schedule for repayment
of principal has been stipulated by the Company for one subsidiary. Therefore, in the absence of
stipulation of repayment terms, we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of
principal and payment of interest. The following instances where the principal and interest
amounts, as stipulated, were not paid.
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Name of the entity Amount in Due Date Extent of delay Remarks (if any)
INR

Allygrow

Technologies BV

- Interest 2019 51,592 31/03/2019 1,162 days | The amount due

- Interest 2020 54,296 31/03/2020 797 days | is disclosed under

- Interest 2021 58,776 31/03/2021 431days | the head “Current

- Interest 2022 51,219 31/03/2022 66 days | Assets - Loans” as

receivable

(d) Inrespect of the following loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days as at March
31, 2022 is Rs. 632,754. In our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for the
recovery of the principal amounts and interest, except in respect of loans overdue aggregating Rs.
473,330 for which the Company has not taken any steps for recovery.

No. of cases

Principal Amount
Overdue

Interest Overdue

Total Overdue

Remarks (if any)

473,330

473,330

The Company
has not taken
any steps for
recovery

(e) Following loans were granted to same parties, which has fallen due during the year and were
renewed. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan

Name of the parties

Aggregate amount dues
renewed or extended or
settled by fresh loans

Percentage of the aggregate to the total loans
or advances in the nature of loans granted
during the year

Allygrow Technologies BV

21,16,498

No new loans granted during the year

(f) The Company has not made any investments, granted loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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iv.

vil. (a)

b)

Viil.

ix. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

6]

(x)(a)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
cess, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised funds on short term basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(x)(b)

(xi) (a)

(xi)(b)

(xi)(c)

XIi.

xiii.

The Company has made a preferential allotment during the year, in compliance with the
requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used for the
purpose for which funds were raised

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required
to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent,
the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company did not have an internal audit system

during the year and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(xiv)(b) The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year.

XV.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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{¢) The Company is not a Core Investlment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

(d)

(xvii)

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xviX(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does nol have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complele.
Accordingly; the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losges in the financial year and had incurred cash losses
of Rs. 752.87 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the stalutory auditors during the year and accordingly the

(xix)

(xx)

(i)

reporting under clause (xviil) is not applicable.

According lo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Note 3o to the financial statements), ageing and expected dales of realisation of
financial assets and payment of finaneial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporiing the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibilily under Section 135 of the Act are nol
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respeet of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500010

Vivian Pillai
Pariner

Place: Melbourne, Australia Membership Number: 127701
Dale: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22127701AJVYZH4390



Allvgrow Technologies Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Ali amounts are in Rupees fakhs, uricss stated otherwise)

Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
ASSETS -
Non-curren: asscts
Property, plant and eguipment 4 {u) 6738 46 42 §3 98
Right-of-use assets 4 (a} 8239 137 72 138 62
Intangible assets 4 (h) 3122 31906 65 4
Investment in joint venture 5 1,092 00 1.092 00 1.0v2 0C
Investment in subsic: 6 340 88 J46 88 193 00
Financial assets
(a) Loans Tia) 25 89 26.25 25 49
(b)Other financial asse's (h) 3791 3761 317 76
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - - -
Non-Current tax assets {net) 9 58 87 12062 168 04
Total non-current assets 1,742.54 1,848.76 1,774.03
Current assets
ancial assets
(a) Loars 10 (2} 216 165 138 75
(b) Trade rece:vables 10 (b) 53098 103 65 599 17
(c) Cash and cash equivalerts () £344! 7363 171 96
(d) Baak balances other than (c) above ie (d) 529 0C 596 26 522 94
{e} Otker financial assets 10(e) 723 422 2754
Otirer curren: assels 11 59 65 39 69 149 86
Total current assels 1,263.43 1,039.10 1,730.52
Total assets 3.005.97 2,887.86 3,304.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eauity share capital 12 25.28 67! [ H
Freference share capital - 50 55 50 56
Other equity 2,480.96 224277 3,060 22
Total equity 2,506.24 2,300.04 3,147.49
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(a} Borrowings 14 - - i
(b) Lease hiabilites 4 (a) 3708 98.32 iG8 §7
Total non-current liabilities 37.08 98.32 108.87
Financial liabilities
ia) Borrowings 15 - - 2327
(b) Lease liabiiiues 4(a) 6125 5130 33 21
(c) Trade payables i
- Total outstanding cues of niicro and smal! ea‘erprise &
tancing dues of ereditors other thar miero 250 17 132 50 A3
enterprises an
(d) Other financia (B 96 77 187.81 349
Provisions 8 12 63 5308 &1 27
lOther current lisbiiities i 4183 64.81 3262
[Total current liabilities 462.65 489.50 248.19
Total hinbilitics 499.73 587.82 357.06
Yotal equity and liabilities 3,005.97 2,887.86 3,504.55

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with

in terms of our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Frere Reglstration Nur ber 012754N/NSCOU o

Nz=""

Vivian Pillai
Panner

Mebership No + 127791

Piace Melbourne
Date May 30, 2022

¢ 2ccompanying notes

For and un behalf of the board of directors of
Allygrow Technologies Private Limited

LG

Prashant Kamat
Director

DIN 07212749
Place” Nagpur

% c \ 9 e .u-f \
Krishnan Rathnam
Chref Financial Office:

Vishal'Pawar

Director

DIN 07440832
Place Nagpur

Place Pune
Date May 28, 2022




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts arc in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes 31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 20 1,284.93 791.27
Other income 21 847.09 42.88
Total income 2,132.02 834.15
Expenses

Employce benefits expense 22 1,329.01 1,379.17
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 68.59 108.67
Other expenses 24 504.57 196.50
Finance costs 25 11.68 14.25
Total expenses 1,913.85 1,698.59
Profit/(loss) before tax 218.17 (864.44)
Income tax expense 26

- Current tax - -

- Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense - -
Profit /(loss) for the year 218.17 (864.44)
Other comprehensive incomne, net of income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measurement of post employment benefit plans (5.26) 4.30
Income-tax relating to the above - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (5.26) 4.30
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 212.91 (860.14)
Earnings/(loss) per share 40

Basic earnings/(loss) per Share 142.86 (1,289.09)
Diluted loss per share - (270.27)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

g

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Allygrow Technologies Private Limited

N

Vivian Pillai
Partner
Membership No.: 127791

Place: Melbourne
Date: May 30, 2022

Prashant Kamat
Director

DIN: 07212749
Place: Nagpur

i

Krishnan Rathnam
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune
Date : May 28, 2022

Vishal Pawar
Director

DIN: 07440832
Place. Nagpur



Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax 218.17 (864 44)
Adjustments for .

Depreciation and amortisation expense 68.59 108 67
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment £33 099
Dividend received (800.00) .
Interest income classified as investing cash flows (16.68) (39.40)
Finance costs 11.68 14.25
Non-cash emplovee share-based payments - 12.69
Changes in operating assets and liabilities :

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (262 15) 416.08
Increase in trade payables 117.67 18.17
Decrease/ (increase) in loans 0.36 (0.76)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (3.06) 23.69
(Decrease)/ increase in other financial liabilities (91.04) 185.94
Increase in other assets (0.06) 90.18
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions (45.71) 16.11
Increase in current liabilities 11.84 1].63
Cash used in operations (789.04) (6.20)
Income taxes refund received (net) 70.75 38.42
Net cash inflow from operating activities (718.29) 32.22
Cash flows from investing activities :

Payments for property, plant and equipment (34.83) (32.98)
Procceds from sale of property, plant and equipment 010 8.90
Proceeds from investment in bank deposits 867 26 941.68
Payments for purchase of investments in subsidiary - (153.88)
Payments for investment in bank deposits (800.00) (1,015.00)
Dividend received 80000 <
Interest received 16.22 196.28
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 848.75 (55.00)
Cash flow from financing activities :

Buy back of shares (6.71) -
Principal elements of lease payments (51.29) (38.03)
Interest elements of lease pavments (11.68) (13.49)
Repayments of long-term borrowings - (2327)
Interest and other finance costs paid - (0.76)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (69.68) (75.55)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 60.78 (98.33)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 73.63 171.96
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 134.41 73.63
Non-cash investing activities

- Acquisition of right-of-usc assets 2 45.57
Non-cash financing activities

-Issue of Equity shares on conversion of compulsarily convertible preference shares 50.56 -

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Yivian Pillai
Partner
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Date: May 30, 2022
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Allygrow Technologies Private Limited

Plomet

Prashant Kamat
Director

DIN: 07212749
Place: Nagpur

%‘«
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Date : May 28, 2022
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Director
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Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

A. () Equity share capital

Notes Amount
As at [ April 2020 12 6.71
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2021 12 6,71
Conversion of compulsarily convertible preference shares 25.28
Buy back of shares (6.71)
As at 31 March 2022 12 215.28
A. (ii)Preference share capital
Notes Amount
As at 1 April 2020 12 50.56
Changes in preference share capital -
As at 31 March 2021 12 50.56
Conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares (50.56)
into equity shares
As at 31 March 2022 12 =
B. Other equity
Notes Reserves and surplus
Retained Securities Capital Share options Total
Earnings Premium Redemption | outstanding amount
Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2020 13 (12,621.75) 14,096.22 - 1,615.75 3,090.22
Profit for the year (864.44) - - - (864.44)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 4.30 - - - 4.30
Total comprehensive income for the year (860.14) - - - {860.14)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Employee stock option expense = = B 12.69 12.69
As at 31 March 2021 (13,481.89) 14,096.22 - 1,628.44 2,242.77
Notes Reserves and surplus
Retained Securities Capital Share options Total
Earnings Premium Redemption | outstanding amount
Reserve
Balance as at April I, 2021 13 (13,481.89) 14,096.22 - 1,628.44 2,242.77
Profit for the year 218.17 - - - 218.17
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (5.20) - - - (5.26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 212.91 - - - 212.91
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of Equity shares on conversion of compulsorily - 2528 . - 25.28
convertible preference shares
Shares bought back N = 6.71 - 6.71
Transferred into capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy - (6.71) R N (6.71)
back of shares
As at 31 March 2022 (13,268.98) 14,114.79 6.71 1,628.44 2,480.96

In terms of our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

INZ =

Vivian Pillai
Partner
Membership No.: 127791

Place’ Melbourne
Date: May 30. 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Allygrow Technologies Private Limited

Buckuet $1neet

Prashant Kamat
Director

DIN: 07212749
Place: Nagpur

Krishnan Rathnam

Chief Financial Officer

Piace : Pune
Date - May 28,2022

\

Vishal Pawar
Director

DIN: 07440832
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Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. General Information

Allygrow Technologies Private Limited ("the Company") is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in the business of providing engineering design and engineering
research and development services. Its registered office and principal place of business is in 4A, ground
floor, IT8, Qubix Business Park SEZ Township Blue Ridge Town Pune, Phase 1, Paranjpe Schemes,
Hinjawadi, Pune, Maharashtra.

2. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
i. Compliance with Ind-AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to the year ended 31 March 2021 were prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. Refer note
41 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. ’

it. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:
e  certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

e  defined benefit plans

e  share based payments

iii.  Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il (Division 1I) to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of current or non-current classitication of assets and liabilities.

50 Y 7 --,\}



Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards,
and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
standalone financial statements in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Foreign currency transactions
(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss and presented in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on a net basis within Other expenses/Other Income as the case may be.

A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned likely to occur in the forseeable future is
considered part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation.

Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue from engineering services and allied services comprises of revenues earned from time and
material and fixed price contracts. Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised as the
related services are performed.

Fixed -price contracts include an hourly fee. Revenue is recognised in the amount to which the
Company has a right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is due
at the end of the month for the hours spent.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances
change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by
management.




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financing componenis

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence,
the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

¢)Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where
it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Leases
As a lessee

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments —

e Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable

e Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date.

® Amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

e The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company,
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Company would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security, and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Company; and
e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following —

The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Any initial direct costs, and

Restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

¢)

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Impairment of assets

Non -financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, balances with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

g) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at the amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
loss allowance.

h) Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost as per IndAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements. On
disposal of such investments, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of
the investments are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

i) Other financial assets

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and
e Those to be measured at amortized cost.




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(A4ll amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The classification is done depending upon the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as elected. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

il. Recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

iii. Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at 'fair value
through profit or loss' are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt
instruments as follows:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractuzl cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in Other
Income.

Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 36 details how the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets only, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1)

k)

v. Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized only when
e Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

e retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial
asset.

vi. Income recognition

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the profit or loss as part of Other Income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant, and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

/
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Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

D

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the assets, net of their
residual value over their estimated useful lives

Assets Useful life as per
Schedule I1

Computers/IT assets 3 years
Servers and Equipment 3 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vechiles 5 years

The residual values of the assets are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are
included in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if
any. Amortization period and amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as
income or expense in the Profit or Loss. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Assets Useful life
Computer software | 3 years

m)Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss within Other Income.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify
the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events,it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at undiscounted amounts since the impact of discounting is not material.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

p) Employee benefits

Short term obligations

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Company has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. These obligations are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations
The Company operates following post-employment schemes:

e defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
e defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

(i) Gratuity obligations

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

G-
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(ii) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are incurred.

(iii) Share- based payments
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Option Plans.
Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

e Including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period)

« including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save
or hold shares for a specific period of time).

(iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates

i. When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits: and
ii. When the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits

In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
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q) Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Compulsory convertible instruments such as preference shares
that will be or are expected to be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as
equity if they are expected to be settled into a fixed number of equity shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

r) Earnings per share
i. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
e dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account

e the after tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (i) the amount
determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS 115.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party
for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

t) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at
the end of the reporting period.
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u) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs
as per the requirements of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Note 3: Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed.

Significant Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

1. Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain 1o be extended
(or not terminated).

For leases, the following factors are normally the most relevant —

e [f there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

e [f any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

e Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and is within the
control of the lessee.

2. Legal contingencies

In making the decision regarding the need for loss provisions, management considers the degree of
probability of an unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount
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of loss. The filing of suit or a formal assertion of a claim against the Company or the disclosure of any suit
or assertions, does not automatically indicate that a provision of a loss may be appropriate.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

1. Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The costs, assets and liabilities of the defined benefit schemes operating by the company are determined
using methods relying on actuarial estimates and assumptions. Details of the key assumptions and the
sensitivity of the net assets/liability position to changes in those key assumptions are set out in note 27.
The Company takes advice from independent actuaries relating to the appropriateness of the assumptions.
Changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the statement of profit and loss and the
balance sheet for the periods under review.

2. Fair Value of employee share options
The fair valuation of the employee share options is based on the Black-Scholes Model used for valuation

of options. Key assumptions include expected volatility, share price, expected dividends, term and discount
rate, under this pricing model. Refer Note no. 28
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4 (a) Property, plant and equipment

Computer Servers and Office equipment Vehicles Total
equipment network
Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020 48.58 15.25 29.34 160.15 253.32
Additions - - - 3136 31.36
Disposals (4.58) : (0.67) (116.37) (121.62)
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 44.00 15.25 28.67 75.14 163.06
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2020 40.93 8.87 19.23 130.31 199.34
Charge for the year 2.73 262 4.56 1971 29.62
Disposals (4.24) - (0.61) (107.47) (112.32)
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 39.42 11.49 23.18 42.55 116.64
2021
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 4.58 3.76 5.49 32.59 46.42
Net carrying amount as at Ist April 2020 7.65 6.38 10.11 29.84 53.98
Computer Servers and Office equipment Vehicles Total
equipment network
Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2021 44.00 15.25 28.67 75.14 163.06
Additions 13.15 - 161 20.07 34.83
Disposals - - (0.05) (28.76) (28.81)
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 57.15 15.25 30.23 66.45 169.08
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2021 39.42 11.49 23.18 42.55 116.64
Charge for the year 2.04 144 2.87 6.07 12.42
Disposals - - (0.04) (27.32) (27 36)
S;g;lug accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 41.46 12.93 26.01 21.30 101.70
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 15.69 2.32 4.22 45.15 67.38
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4 (a) Leases:

This note provides information for lcases where the Company is a lessec. The Company leases various offices.

Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1-5 years, but may have extension options as described in (1).

(i) The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

M

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Right-of-use assets:
Office Premises

82.39

137.72

138.62

82.39

137.72

138.62

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Lease Liabilities:

Current 6125 51.30 33.21
Non-current 37.08 9§.32 108.87
98.33 149.62 142.08

Additions to right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2022 were Nil (31 March 2021: INR 45.57 lakhs.)

(ii) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss

The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Particulars Notes 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Depreciation charge of right-of-usc assets

- Office Premises 23 55.33 46.47

Total 55.33 46.47

Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest expense (included in finance costs) 25 11.68 13.49
24 3,35 18.61

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 was INR 68.32 lakhs (for previous year INR 70.13 lakhs)

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases entered into by the Company. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable mutually by

both lessor and lessee
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4 (b) Intangible assets

Software Total
Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020 304.60 304.60
Additions - -
Disposals (3.61) (3.61)
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 300.99 300.99
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1 2020 239.47 239.47
Charge for the year 32.58 32.58
Disposals (3.02) (3.02)
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2021 269.03 269.03
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 31.96 31.96
Net carrying amount as at 1 April 2020 065.14 65.14
Software Total
Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2021 300.99 300.99
Additions 0.10 0.10
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 301.09 301.09
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1 2021 269.03 269.03
Charge for the year 0.84 0.84
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022 269.87 269.87
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 31.22 31.22

Q/
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5 Investment accounted for using the equity method

(=

()

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Investment in equity instrunents of joint venture
(fully paid up):

Unquoted:
10,920,000 equity shares (previous year.
10,920,000) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in

Allygram Systems and Technologies Private
Limited

1.092.00

1,092.00

1,092.00

Aggrepate amount of unguoted investments

1,092.00

1.092.00

1,092.00

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of
investments

Investment in subsidiaries :

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Investment in subsidiaries (fully paid up):

Unguoted:
33,663 equity shares (previous year: 33,214) of 153.88 153.88 -
USD 1 each fully paid up in Technology
Associates Inc. USA
100,000 equity shares (previous year: 100.000) of 193.00 193.00 193.00
Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Allygrow Engineering

ices Private Limi
Total (equity instruments) 346.88 346.88 193.00
Agpregate amount of unguoted investments 346.88 346.88 193.00

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of

investments

Non-current loans

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

I April 2020

Loan to related Parties (Refer Note no. 39)

25.89

26.25

25.49

Total

25.89

26.25

25.49

Break up of security details

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Loans considered good - Secured

Loans considered good - Unsccured 25.89 26.25 25.49
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - # #
Loans - credit impaired - - -
Total 25.89 26.25 25.49
Less: Loss allowance - - -
Total 25,89 26.25 25.49
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7(b)

=)

10 (a)

Other non-curent financial assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Security deposits

37.91

37.91

37.76

Total

37.91

37.91

37.76

Deferred tax assets

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Gross amount Unrecognised Gross amount Unrecognised |Gross amount Unrecognised
tax effect tax effect tax effect
Deductible temporary differences 947 246 11853 30.82 93.93 24.42
Tax losses 4.388.67 1,141.05 3,932.37 1,022 42 3,074.94 799.48
4,398.14 1,143.52 4,050.90 1,053.23 3,168.87 823.91

Tax losses carried forward

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Expire 3,956.60 3.536.02 2,720 38
Never expire 432.07 396.35 354.56
Total 4,388.67 3,932.37 3,074.94

The expiry dates are as follows:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

2023-24 532.57 532.57 532.57
2024-25 1206.57 1,206.57 1.206.57
2025-26 760.29 760.29 76029
2026-27 22095 22095 22095
2027-28 0 = &
2028-29 815.64 815.64 -
2029-30 420.59 - -
Total 3,956.61 3,536.02 2,720.38
Current tax assets (net)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance
Current tax assets (net) 129.62 168.04
Less: Current tax payable for the year - -
Add: Taxes paid/ (refund received) (70.75) (3842)
Closing balance 58.87 129.62
Curent Loans

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Interest acerued on loans to related parties (Refer 216 165 158.75
note 39)
Total 2.16 1.65 158,78
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10 (b) Trade receivables

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 311,27 129.41 159.93
Trade Receivables contracts with customers - - - 456.77
related parties (Refer note 39)
Unbilled revenue related to service contracts 219.71 182.73 88.23
Less: Loss allowance - (8.49) (5.76)
Total receivables 530.98 303.65 699.17
Breakup of security details
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 311.27 129.41 616.70
Less: loss allowance - (8.49) (5.76)
Total 530.98 303.65 699.17

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
31 March 2022 Less than 6 More than 3 Total
months 6 months - 1 years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years

Trade receivables
Undisputed trade receivables- considered good -

Undisputed trade receivables- which have 305.01 - - 6.26 . 311.27
significant increase in credit risk

Total trade receivables 305.01 - - 6.26 - 311.27

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments
31 March 2021 Less than 6 More than 3 Total
months 6 months - 1 years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years

Trade receivables
Undisputed trade receivables- considered pood & & - - - -

Undisputed trade receivables- which have 120.91 - 8.50 E - 129.41
significant increase in credit risk

Total trade receivables 120.91 - 8.50 - - 129.41

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments

1 April 2020 Less than 6 More than 3 Total
months 6 months - 1 years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years

Trade receivables
Undisputed trade receivables- considered good - = ¥ & o -

Undisputed trade receivables- which have 159.29 - 45741 - - 616.70
significant increase in credit risk

Total trade receivables 159.29 - 45741 - - 616.70

*There are no disputed dues payable
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10 (c)

10 (d)

10(e)

Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 134 41 73.63 17196
Total cash and cash equivalents 134.41 73.63 171,96

Bank balances other than (iii) above

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Deposits with maturity more than three months but
less than twelve months
- Earmarked balances with Bank (balance held as

security towards obtaining bank puarantee)

529.00

Total

230.98 157 66
- 365.28 365.28
529.00 596.26 £22.94

Other current financial assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 39) 3.06 - 23.84
Interest accrued on deposits 4.17 4.22 4.00
Total 7.23 4.22 27.84

Other current assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Prepayments 26.69 18.76 2024
Balances with government authorities 32.70 29.20 124.59
Advances to vendors - 11.67 4.65
Others 0.26 0.06 0.38
Total 59.65 59.69 149.86
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12 Equity
Authorised share capital
Equity share capital Preference share capital
Number of shares Amount Nl ol Amount
shares

As at 1 April 2020 1,95,000 19.50 6,52,500 130.50
Increase during the year - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 1,95,000 19.50 6,52,500 130.50
Increase during the year 5,00,000 5000 (2,50,000) (50.00)
As at 31 March 2022 6,95,000 69.50 4,02,500 80.50

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 19 November 2021, approved the proposal to buy-back upto 79,959 equity shares of the
Company for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 8 lakhs , being 25% of the total paid up equity share capital at Rs 10 per equity
share. The shareholders approved the same on 26 November 2021. by way of a special resolution. A Letter of Offer was made to all
cligible sharcholders. The Company bought back 67,058 shares in full that were tendered by cligible shareholders and extinguished the
cquity shares on 31 December 2021 Capital redemption reserve was created to the extent of nominal value of the share capital

extinguished (Rs.6.71 lakhs).

(a) Movements in equity

Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2020 67,058 6.71
Change during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 67,058 6.71
Buy back of shares (67,058) ©71)
Issue ofec!lmy shares. pursuant to conversion of 252,780 2598
compulsarily convertible preference shares
As at 31 March 2022 2,52,780 25.28

Preference share capital
Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2020 2,52,780 50.56
Change during the year - 8
As at 31 March 2021 2,52,780 50.56
Conversion into equity shares (2,52,780) (5(0.56)
As at 31 March 2022 - -

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to reccive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding

ii "Series A" Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCCPS)

As to dividend

Preference shares carried a preferential right as to dividend over equity shares Where dividend on cumulative preference shares was not
declared for a financial year, the entitlement thereto would be carried forward. Rate of dividend for Preference Shares was 0.001% of the
Issue Price per annum.

As to voting

Each shareholder was entitled to vote in proportion to his share of paid up preference share capital of the Company, except in case of
voting by show of hands where each shareholder present in person would have one vote only on any resolutions of the Company directly
affecting their rights. Voting rights could not be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums payable had not been
paid

As to repayment of capital

In the event of liquidation. preference shareholders had a preferential right over equity shareholders to be repaid to the extent of capital
paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The distribution would be in proportion to paid up capital.

There were no shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates as at March 31, 2021

Conversion terms :

The CCPS were convertible into equity shares at the carliest of the following events

a) Completion of 10 (ten) years from the date of 1ssuance;

b) Sale of all or majority of the Securities of the Company (computed on a fully diluted basis);

¢) the date prior to filing of the red herring prospectus with SEBI or any corresponding filing with any other regulator of a Recognized
Exchange or

d) any holder of "Series A" CCCPS electing to convert the Preference Shares held by it.

The number of equity share to be allotted on conversion would be determined based on the face value of preference shares and value of

cach equity share, determined as per the terms of issue.
During the year ended March 31, 2022, all of CCPS were converted into equal “\@fﬂﬁmtﬂs.
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(b) Shares of the C y held by ulti

te holding company

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Ceinsys Tech Limited

209,049

_—

(c

shares in the Company

31 March 2022

Number of shares

% of holding

Zodius Technology Fund
Zodius Technology Fund 11
Ceinsys Tech Limited

13,262
12,993
2,09.049

5.25%
5.12%
82.70%

31 March 2021

Number of shares

% of holding

Allygrow Technologies ESOP Trust 44,824 66.84%
WST Capital GmbH 22,024 32.84%
1 April 2020

Number of shares

% of holding

Allygrow Technologies ESOP Trust
WST Capital GmbH

44,824
22,024

66.84%
32.84%

Shares held by holding company and details of equity shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate

(d) The Company has ESOP trust set up for welfare of employees.Such trust hold Nil ( 31March 2021: 44824 ; 1 April 2020 44824) equity
shares representing Nil (31 March 2021 66.84% ; 1 April 2020 66.84%) of equity shares in the company.

(e) Shares held by holding company and details of preference shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate

shares in the Company
"'Series A" Compul

rily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 20/- each

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Number %o of holding Number %o of holding
Zodius Technology Fund - - 76,658 30%
Elder Venture LLP - - 51,500 20%
Vnshali Kamat - - 12,600 5%
Avezo Advisors Private Limited - - 24,000 10%
Zodius Technology Fund I Limited - - 74,758 30%
Indiblu Investment Advisors (Mauritius) Limited - - 13,264 5%

ay”
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(D Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash

31 March 2022

Number of
shares

preference shares

Shares issued as conversion of compulsary convertible

2,52,780

(g) Other details of equity shares immediately preceding 31 March 2022

(i) Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCCPS ) into equity shares

On 03-Nov-21, all the CCCPS were converted into equal number of equity shares A separate class of equity shares was created for the
conversion namely “Class B” equity shares Class B equity shares were to have 99.90% economic rights and voting rights.

(ii) Buy back of shares

The Company bought back 67,058 equity shares at Rs 10 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on 21

December 2021

13 Reserves and Surplus

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Share options outstanding account - 1,628 44 1,615.75
Securities premium 14,114.79 14,096.22 14,096.22
Capital redemption reserve 6.71 - -
Retained eamings (11,640.54) {13,481 .89) (12,621.75)
Total 2,480.96 2,242.77 3,090.22
(a) Share options outstanding account
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 1,628.44 1,615.75
Employee stock option expense - 12.69
Transferred to retained earnings (1,628.44) -
Closing balance - 1,628.44
(b) Securities premium
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14,096.22 14,096.22
Issue of shares on conversion of compulsary convertible 2528 i
preference shares ’
Transferred into capital redemption reserve pursuant to
(6.71)
buy back of shares
Balance as at the end of the year 14,114.79 14,096.22
(c) Capital redemption reserve

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance

back of shares

Transferred from securities premium pursuant (o buy

671

Closing balance

6.71
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(d) Retained earnings:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance (13,481.89) (12,621.75)
Net Profit for the peniod 218.17 (864 .44)
Transferred to retained camings of ESOP reserve 1,628 .44 .

ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit {5.26) 4.30
obligations, net of tax

Closing balance (11,640.54) (13,481.89)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

i Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on 1ssue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Share options outstanding account
The share options outstanding account is used to recogmse the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee
stock option plan

iii. Capital redemption reserve
Pertains to reserve created towards buy back of equity shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act
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14

Non- current horrowings

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Secured
Term loans
From banks* - - 23.27
Total non-current borrowings - - 23.27
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 13) - - 23.27

Total non-current borrowings (as per balance

sheet)

*Term loan from bank was secured by exclusive charge on vechiles.

Terms of repavment:

The loans were repayable in 60 monthly installments from date of draw down of loan along with interest ranging from 9.36% p.a to

9.65% pa

15 Current borrowings

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Loans repavable on demand

Secured
From banks

Current maturities of long term borrowings - - 23.27
Total current borrowings - - 23.27
Net debt reconciliation:
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for the year ended
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 1 April 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 134.41 73.63 171.96
Lease liabilities (98.33) (149.62) (142.08)
Current borrowings 3 5 (22.27)
36.08 (75.99) 6.61
Cash and cash Lease obligations Borrowings Total
equivalents
Net debt as on 1 April 2020 171.96 (142.08) (23.27) 6.61
Cash flows (98.33) 38.03 23.27 (37.03)
Acquisitions - leases (45.57) - (45.57)
Interest expense - (13.49) (0.76) (14.25)
Interest paid - 13.49 0.76 14.25
Net debt as on 31 March 2021 73.63 (149.62) - (75.99)
Cash and cash Lease obligations Borrowings Total
equivalents
Net debt as on 1 April 2021 73.63 (149.62) - (75.99)
Cash flows 60.78 51.29 - 112.07
Interest paid (1168) (11.68)
Interest expense - 11.68 - 11,68
Net debt as on 31 March 2022 134.41 (98.33) - 36.08
Trade payables
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Trade payables
(a) Micro and small enterprises =
(b) Other than micro and small enterpnses
i} Related parties (refer note 39) 6212 62.12 62.12
i) Others 188.05 70.38 52.21
Total 250.17 132.50 114.33

e
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Trade Pavables ageing - Amounts (gross of provisions) from the date invoice falls dues

More than 3

31 March 2022 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
vears
Trade payables
Undisputed-MSME .
Undisputed-Others 187 74 - 031 62.12 250.17
Total Trade Payables 187.74 - 0.31 62.12 250.17
31 March 2021 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo;:;:‘:" a3 Total
Trade payables
Undisputed-MSME -
Undisputed-Others 70.08 - 62.42 132 50
Total Trade Pavables 70.08 - 62.42 - 132.50
1 April 2020 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo:z;:‘:“ # Total
Trade payables
Undisputed-MSME -
Undisputed-Others 51.95 6238 - 114.33
Total Trade Payables 51.95 62.38 - - 114.33

*There are no disputed dues payable .

17 Other current financial liabilities

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Payables to employees 96.77 187.81 -

Capital creditors - - 1.62
Pavable to related parties (Refer note 39) - - 1.87
Total 96.77 187.81 3.49

18 Current provisions

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Provision for employece benefits

Provisions for gratuity 421 4235 33.87
Provision for compensated absences* 8.42 10.73 7.40
Total 12.63 53.08 41.27

* The entire amount of the provision of INR 8.42 lakhs (31 March 2021 — INR 10.73 lakhs) is presented as current,
since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However,
based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or

require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

19 Other current liabilities

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Advance from customers - 34 82 14.26
Statutory tax payables 3574 2371 1836
Unearned Revenue 6.09 6.28 -
Total 41.83 64.81 32.62

Advance payments from customers are amounts received prior to transferring goods and services to the customer The
balance as at the beginning of the year is recognised as revenue during the year while the amount recognised as at the

end of the year represents advance payments received during the particular year.
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20

21

22

23

24

Revenue from operations

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of services*

1,284.93

791.27

Total

1,284.93

791.27

* Revenue recognised over the period of time during the financial year.

There are no items of reconciliation between contract price and revenue recognized.

QOther income

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Interest income on financial assests at amortised cost

- On bank deposits 16.13 38.85
- On loan to related parties 0.55 0.55
Net foreign exchange differences 5.34 (2.90)
Interest on income tax refund 16.48 4.03
Miscellaneous income 8.59 2.35
Dividend received 800.00 -

Total 847.09 42.88

Employee benefits expense

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,267.37 1,316.50
Contribution to provident and other funds 34.44 29.94
Gratuity 13.05 12.46
Employee share-based payment expense - 12.69
Staff welfare expenses 14.15 7.58
Total 1,329.01 1,379.17

Depreciation and amortisation expense

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 12.42 29.62
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 55.33 46.47
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.84 32.58
Total 68.59 108.67

Other expenscs

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 6.81 6.79
- Machinery 0.21 0.12
- Others 1.01 0.88
Communication expense 10.80 11.86
Power and fuel 9.18 8.65
Rental charges 5.35 18.61
Rates and taxes 0.44 0.84
Legal and professional charges 174.97 55.62
Travel and conveyance expenses 3540 3.35
Insurance 7.13 7.09
Printing and stationery 5.28 2.39
Recruitment expenses 1.74 2,20
Provision for doubtful debts - 2.73
Housekeeping and security expenses 4.33 525
Software licenses 20.03 19.32
Outsourced technical services 193.23 34.19
Payments to auditors [refer note 24(a)] 25.10 11 85
Bank charges 0.80 3.55
Miscellaneous expenses 2.76 1.21
Total 504.57

o
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24 (a) Details of payments to auditors

25

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

As auditor:

Statutory audit fee 18.45 9.45
Tax audit fee 1.50 1.35
In other capacities:
Certifications 5.15 0.65
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses - 0.40
Total 25.10 11.85
Finance costs

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit - 0.76
and loss ’
Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities 11.68 13.49
Total 11.68 14.25

Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are:

Profit and Loss section

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Income tax expense
Current income tax
Deferred tax

Total

Other comprehensive income section

31 March 2022

31 March 202]

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Income tax (charged) / eredited to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March

2021

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Accounting profit before tax 218.17 (864.44)
Tax at substantively enacted income-tax rate of 26% (31 March 2021- 26%) (56.72) 224.75

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was recognised 56.72 (224.75)

Income tax expensc

g
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27 Employee benefit obligations

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Leave obligations (Refer Note A)

Current 842 10.73 7.40
Gratuity (Refer Note B)
Current 4.21 4235 33.87

A Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick leave and earned leave. The significant assumptions were as

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 6.30% 5.90%
Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market

B Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of
service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company
does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on

estimations of expected gratuity payments.

i The amounts recognised in balance sheet and movements in the net benefit obligation over the year are as follow :

Present value of | Fair value of plan Net amount
obligation assets

1 April 2021 51.48 (9.13) 42.35
Current service cost 11.43 - 11.43
Interest expense/(income) 2.35 (0.57) 1.78
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 13.78 (0.57) 13.21
Remeasurements

- Returns on plan assets - 0.06 0.06

- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (0.71) - (0.71)

- Experience (gains)/losses 5.76 - 576
'[!;loct(:::n::mmmt recognised in Other Comprehensive 505 0.06 511
Employer contributions/premiums paid - (35.00) (35.00)
Benefit payments (28.46) 5.85 (22.61)
Mortality charges and taxes - 1.16 1.16
31 March 2022 41.85 (37.63) 4.22
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Present value of | Fair value of plan Net amount
obligation assets

1 April 2020 43.98 (10.10) 33.88
Current service cost 10.58 - 10.58
Interest expense/(income) 2.65 (0.76) 1.89
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 13.23 (0.76) 12.47
Remeasurements

- Returns on plan assets & 041 0.41

- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.41 - 041

- Experience (gains)/losses (5.12) - (5.12)
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive @.71) 0.41 (4.30)
Income
Employer contributions/premiums paid - (0.28) (0.28)
Benefit payments (1.00) 100 -
Mortality charges and taxes (0.02) 0.60 0.58
31 March 2021 51.48 (9.13) 42.35

ii The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows :

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Present value of funded obligation 41.85 51.48 4398
Fair value of plan assets (37.63) {9.13) (10.10)
Net deficit of the gratuity plan 4.22 42.35 33.88

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit with an immediate contribution or additional one-off contributions.

iii Significant estimates

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1 April 2020

Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Withdrawal rate:

Mortality rate

6.30%
5.00%
20.00%

IALM(2012-14) ult

5.90%
5.00%
20.00%

IALM (2012-14) ult

6.10%
5.00%
20.00%

[ALM (2012-14) ult

iv Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of defined obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Assumption

Impact on defined benefit obligation

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Discount rate
1% decrease
1% increase

Salary increment rate
1% decrease
1% increase

Withdrawal rate
1% decrease
1% increase

43.70
4013

40.48
43.30

41 82

41.87

53.64
49.50

49.94
53 14

5148
51.49
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v

Vi

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this
is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated
with the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined
benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The method and types of assumptions uscd in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plan, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

below:

Asset Volatility:

All plan assets for gratuity are maintained by a public sector insurer viz. LIC of India (‘'LIC"). LIC has a sovereign guarantee and
has been providing consistent and competitive returns over the years. The Company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all
assets are invested primarily in risk averse markets. The Company has no control over the management of funds but this option
provides a high level of safcty for the total corpus. A single account is maintained for both the investment and claim settlement
and hence 100% liquidity is cnsured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of.

Changes in bond yields:
A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of plans'

bond holdings.

Future salary increase and inflation risk:

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will
often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected
salarv increases provided at management's discretion mav lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasine risk.

Discount rate risk:
Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilitics may seem small, but in practice can have a
significant impact on the defined benefit liabilitics.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2022 are Rs. 6.00 lakhs (31 March
2021: Rs .6.00 lakhs .

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit gratuity plan is 5.84 years (31 March 2021: 5.2 years)

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted benefits is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Between 1 year 872 10.14
Between 2 - 5 years 30.67 41.82
Between 6 - 10 years 40.24 36.39
The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Pooled assets with an insurance company 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

C Defined contribution plans

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans i.c., contribution to provident fund .

Contributions are made to provident fund for eligible employees at 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are
made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation

The expense recognised towards the defined contribution plans is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provident fund 34.44 29.94

34.44 L 19.94

L’-C/




28 Share-based payments

(a)

Employee option plan

The Company’s ESOP Plan is administered through an ESOP Trust, which subscribes to equity shares of the Company and
holds them until issuance thereof based on vesting and exercise of options by employees. Under the said scheme, as at end of
March 31, 2021, 44,824 (March 31. 2020 : 44,824) numbers of equity shares were allotted to ESOP Trust.

The number and weighted average exercise price of stock options are as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Aw':rage exercise Nk of Av&frage exercise ] )
price per share B price per share Number of options
option (INR) p option (INR)
Opening balance 10 43,483 10 43,483
Granted during the year . -
Exercised during the year - -
Forfeited during the year 10 -43.483 - -
Closing Balance - 0 10 43,483
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:
- Exercise price| Share options 31 Share options 31
i Fibpy ke (INR) March 2022 March 2021
4 May 2016 10 - 36,289
28 July 2016 10 - 7.194
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of

period

Fair value of option granted

The fair value at grant date of options granted is Rs.3745 . The fair value at grant date is independently determined using the
Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and
expected price volatility of the underlying share. the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the
option.

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information
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29 Fair value measurements

Financial assets and liabilitics at amortised cost

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | I April 2020
Financial assets
Loans 2589 26.25 25.49
Trade receivables 53098 303.65 699 17
Cash and cash equivalents 134 41 73.63 171.96
Bank balances other than (b) above 529.00 596 26 52294
Secunty deposits 3791 37.91 3776
Receivables from related partics 3.06 - 23 84
Interest accured on bank deposits 417 4.22 4.00
Interest accured on loans to reiated parties 2.16 1.65 158.75
Total financial assets 1,267.58 1,043.57 1,643.91
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 23.27
Lease liabilities 9833 149.62 142.08
Trade payable 25017 132.50 114.33
Capital creditors - - 162
Payable to employecs 96.77 187.81 -
Payable to group companies - - 1.87
Total financial liabilities 445,27 469.93 283.17

i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrving amounts of trade receivables, security deposits, loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, borrowings, capital creditors, current
maturities of long term debt are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
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30 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III

(a) Financial ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current period | Previous period | % Variance
Current ratio Current assets | Current liabilities 2.73 2.12 29%
Average
Return on equity ratio B Pfr"ai‘ after | Shaccholders 2.27% 793%|  -129%
Equity
Trade receivables turnover ratio Total Sales Trade Receivable 242 2.61 -7%
Net capital turnover ratio Total Sales Working Capital 1.60 1.44 11%
Net profit ratio e prT"aT afler | ol Sales 0.17 (1.09)]  -116%
Return on capital employed EBIT Capital Employed 9.17% -36.96% -125%
Return on investment EBIT Total Assets 7.65% -29.44% -126%

* Debt-equity ratio, Debt service coverage ratio, Inventory turnover ratio and Trade payables turnover ratio are not presented as they are not applicabie to
the Company.
* Explanations to items included in numerator and denominator for computing the above ratios:

EBIT is Earnings before interest and tax
Working capital -~ Current assets - current liabilities
Capital employed = Total Shareholders' Funds + Long-term borrowings + Deferred tax liabilities

Due to increase in sales compared to last year, the balance of receivables has increased. Due to this, there is variance in current ratio.

During the current year, the Company has received dividend of Rs 800 lakhs from its joint venture- Allygram Systems and Technologies Private Limited.
This income was not there during the last year. Due to this, the return on equity ratio, the net profit ratio, return on capital employed and return on
investment ratio are showing variance compared with last year.

(b) Other regulatory information

(i) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee), as disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.

(1i) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(1ii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
There are no borrowings from banks and financial institutions.

(iv) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(v) Borrowing secured against current assets
The company has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets

(vi) Wilful defaulter
None of the entities in the company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

(vii) Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck ofT under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

(viii) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

{ix) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

(x) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. that has
not been recorded in the books of account

(xi) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(xii) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or infangible gsse “both during the ¢
year.
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31

32

33

34

35

36

(i)

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India. there has been severe disruption to regular
business operations due to lock-downs, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.
The Management has made an assessment of liquidity. recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets and has concluded that there are no
material adjustments required in the financial statements. Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events anising
from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements However, the impact assessment of COVID19 will be a continuing process given
the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and no significant impact is envisaged on the operations

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiarics) or

b provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (IFunding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a_ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(UltimateBeneficiaries) or

b provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has paid for managerial remuneration to the directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The
Company proposes to obtain required approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting for remuneration aggregating to 26 11 Lakhs paid
to the directors

Contingent Liabilitics

31 March .
31 March 2022 2021 1 April 2020
Guarantees - 183.76 376.93
Total - 183.76 376.93

On April 28, 2016, a civil suit has been filed on the Company and its key employees by an erstwhile employer of these employees, in relation to breach and
violation of their emplovment contracts, alleging that they have breached confidentiality obligations in order to favour the Company and seeking inter alia
the following reliefs:

- Ceasing the use of alleged confidential information, trade secrets and know how of the erstwhile employer for the Company's business

- Damages 1o be paid to the tune of ¥ 20 Crores

Based on management evaluation in consultation with legal counsel, the case holds no merit. Hence. no provision in respect of this matter in the books as at
March 31, 2022.

Financial risk management

This note explains the Company's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company's future financial performance.

The Company's activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, security deposits, as well as credit exposure to outstanding receivables

Credit risk management

For banks and other financial institutions, only high rated banks/ financial institutions are accepted. The balances with banks and security deposits are subject

to low credit risk and the risk of default is negligible or nil Hence, no provision has been created for expected credit loss for credit risk arising from these
financial assets

Credit nisk related to trade receivables arises from the possibility that customer will not be able to settle their obligations as and when agreed To manage
this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of
historical bad debts, ageing of accounts receivable and forward looking information Individual credit limits are set accordingly utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored
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(i) Impairment of financial assets

i)

The Company has following types of financial assets that are subject to expected credit loss model:
- Trade receivables

Trade receivables

(c JReconciliation of loss allowance provision - trade receivables

Amount
Loss allowance as on 1 April 2020 (5.76)
Changes in loss allowance (273)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2021 (8.49)
Changes in loss allowance 8.49
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2022 5

Louns carried at amortised cost

All loan are considered to have a low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the period was based on specific identification basis. Management
considers instruments to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term which is generally based on past experience and any specific instances noted to the contrary.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the
Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities:

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

31 March 2022 Dtolyear |orethanio
3 vears
Lease liabilities 61.25 37.08
Trade payables 250.17 -
Other financial liabilities 96.77 -
Total 408.19 37.08
31 March 2021 0 to 1 year NI REn 3
3 years
Lease liabilities 51.30 98 32
Trade payables 70.08 6242
Other financial liabilities 187.81 -
Total 309.19 160.74
{ April 2020 T p— More than 1 to [More than 3 to
3 years 4 years
Borrowings 23.27 - -
Lease liabilities 3321 7179 37.08
Trade payables 3195 62 38
Other financial liabilities 3.49 - -
Total 111.92 134.17 37.08

Market Risk

(i) Foreign currency risk
Currency risk means the risk that the result or economic situation of the Company changes due to changes in exchange rates The Company is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD and EURQ Foreign exchange risk arises from future

commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INR). The risk is
measured through a forecast of highly probably foreign currency cash flows.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period in INR (lakhs), are as follows
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(a)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

UsSD EURO USD EURO UsD EURO
Financial assets
Trade receivables 81.79 3504 62 89 8.49 535.38 15.19
Loan to related parties 2116 - 21.52 - 20.76
Interest accured on loan to related parties - 2.16 - 1.65 157.69 1.06
2225{:!;050!? R A 81.79 58.36 62.89 31.66 693.07 37.01

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in foreign exchange rates with respect to year end pavable . receivable bal

lances is as follows .

Impact on profit

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Increase by 5%*
usD
EURO

Decrease by 5%*
USD
EURO

4.09
1.75

-4.09

-1.75

314
0.42

314

-0.42

*Holding all other variables constant

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk since it has no exposure of borrowings that are at variable rate of interest.

Capital management

Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
-safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

-Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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38 Segment reporting
As per para 4 of Ind AS-108 (Operating Segments). il a single financial report contains both the consolidated financial
statements of a parent that is within the scope of this [ndian Accounting Standard as well as the parent’s separate financial
statements. segment information is required only in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly segment information has
been provided only in the consolidated financial statements.

39 Related party transactions

A) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship
(i) Where control exists :

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company
1 |Ceinsys Tech Limited

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Entities over which ATPL exercises control:

1  |Technology Associates Inc. USA

2 |Allygrow Technologies B.V., Netherlands

3 |Allygrow Engineering Services Private Limited, India

4 |Allygrow Technologies GmbH, Germany (formerly known as AE
Automotive Elements GmbH) )

5 |Allygrow Technologies UK Ltd.

6 |Allygrow Technologies ESOP Trust

Joint venture

1 |Allygram Systems and Technologies Private Limited

Post employement benefit trust

1 |Allygrow Technologies Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity
Trust
Key Management Personnel

Neeraj Bhargava - Director (till 07-Feb-22)

Shilpa Kulkarni - Director (till 31-May-21)

Vrishali Kamat - Director (till 07-Feb-22)

Vishal Panjauni - Director (till 07-Feb-22)

Prashant Kamat - Chief Executive Officer (till 16-Fcb-22)
Vishal Pawar - Director (w.e.f. 07-Feb-22)

Abhay Kimmatkar - Director (w.c.f. 07-Feb-22)

Rahul Joharapurkar - Director (w.c.f. 07-Feb-22)

Satish Wate - Director (w.e.f. 07-Feb-22)

loT--TE B S R e O S

1 Key management personnel compensation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1 [Short term employce benefits 481.75 381.79
2 |Post employee benefits 18.20 1.31

Total 499.95 383.10




Allygrow Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

I |Transactions with related parties 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Sale of goods & Services
1 |Technology Associates Inc. USA 160.55 93.89
Allygrow Technologics UK Limited 45.57 -
Reimbursement received for expense
I |Allygrow Engineering Services Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Receipt of services and other charges
1 |Allygrow Technologies B.V 0.55 0.55
Investment in Share Capital
1 |Technology Associates Inc. USA 153.88
Dividend income from Subsidiary
Allygram Systems and Technologies Private Limited 800.00 =
III |Outstanding balances from sale/purchases of goods 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Trade Payables
1 [Allygrow Engineering Services Private Limited 62.12 62.12 62.12
Total trade payables from related parties (note 16) 62.12 62.12 62.12
Trade Receivables
1 |Technology Associates Inc. USA - - 456.77
Unbilled receivables
1 |Technology Associates Inc. USA 21.81 19.68 -
2 |Allygrow Technologies UK Limited 45.57 - -
Total receivables from related parties (note 10) 21.81 19.68 456.77
IV |Loans to/from related parties - - -
1 |Allygrow Technologies ESOP Trust 4,73 4.73 4.73
2 |Allygrow Technologies B.V 21.16 21.52 20.76
Total 25.89 26.25 25.49
v Interest accrued but not due
I |Allygrow Technologies B.V 2.16 1.65 1.06
2 |Technology Associates Inc. USA - - 157.69
Total 2.16 1.65 158.75
V1 |Other payables
1 |Allygram Systems and Technologies Private Limited - - 1.87
Total - - 1.87
VII [Other receivables - -
1 Allygrow Technologies Private Limiied Employees Group Gratuily 296 - 23.71
Trust
2 |Allygrow Engineering Scrvices Private Limited 0.10 - 0.13
Total 3.06 - 23.84

B
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40 Earnings/(Loss) per share

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
(a) Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in 218.17 (864.44)
calculating basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the 1,52,712 67,058
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share
Basic Earnings/(loss) per share 142.86 (1,289.09
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in - (864.44)
calculating basic carnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the - 3,19.838
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share
Diluted Earnings/(loss) per share - (270.27)
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41 First-time adoption
Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company's first financial statements preparcd tn accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and in the preparation of an opening Ind
AS balance sheet at 1 April 2020 {the Company's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted
the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation
of how the transition from previous GAAP to [nd AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and notes

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
I Exemptions availed

a)  Leases
Ind AS 101 permits following practical expedients on application of Ind AS 116.

The following practical expedients have been applied to all the leases
The lease liability is measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS;

The right-of-usc assct is measured as an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of transition to Ind AS;

The following practical expedicnts have been applied -

- the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of lcases with reasonably similar characteristics

- elected not to apply provisions of Ind AS 116 on low value assets

- the accounting for operating lcases with a remaining lcase term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2020 as short-term leases

- the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the rignt-of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

- the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease

Il Exceptions applied
a) [Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same

date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at | April 2020 are consistent with the estimates as at the same datc made in conformity with previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under
previous GAAP.
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2020

- N
Description Notes to first o rarch2021 |1 April 2020
time adoption

Total Equity as per previous GAAP 7,087.22 3,143.00

Ind-AS Adjustments | Increase in Equity/ (Decrease in Equity)]

i Lessee accounting under Ind-AS 116 1 (6.74) -
i Reclassification of loan to related parties 2 4.49 4.49
lii.  |Adjustment for deemed cost exemption on investment in subsidiaries |3 (4,784.93)
iv |Translation differences on long term monetary assets 5 -
Total Ind-AS adjustments (4,787.18) 4.49
Total Equity as per Ind-AS 2,300.04 3,147.49

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to first 31 March 2021
time adoption
Net profit after tax under previous GAAP 3,930.73

Description

Ind AS adjustments [Increase in profits / (decrease in profits)]

i Lessee accounting under Ind-AS 116 1 (6.74)
ii.  |Remeasurements of post employment obligations 4 (4.30)
iii.  |Adjustment for deemed cost exemption on investment in subsidiaries |3 (4,784.93)
iv.  |Translation differences on long term monetary assets 5 0.80

Total of adjustments (4,795.17)

Net Profit after tax as per Ind-AS (864.44)

Other comprehensive income
i Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 4 4.30

Total Other comprehensive income 4.30

Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (860.14)
Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flows {from operating activities (91.67) 123.89 32.22
Net cash flows from investing activities 17.37 (72.37) (55.00)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (24.03) (51.52) (75.55)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (98.33) 0.00 (98.33)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020 171.96 - 171.96
Add/(less) : Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents - - -
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2021 73.63 0.00 73.63
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Notes to first-time adoption

1 Lessee accounting under Ind-AS 116
As per Ind-AS 116, the Company recognised a lease liability and right-of-use asset for all contracts that are or contain a lease unless the lease
contract pertain to short-term leases or leases for which the underlying assct is of low value. The lease liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2020. The weighted average
lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as on | April 2020 was 10%.
The Company has recognised a lease liability of Rs.142.08 lakhs and right-of-use assets amounting to Rs.138.62 lakhs as at the transition date
The Company has also adjusted the lease liability balance appearing in the previvous GAAP financial statements as lease equalisation of
Rs.3.45 lakhs from the corresponding Right of use asset. Accordingly, the right-of use usset was equal to the lease liability reduced by the
lease equalisation liability.
The Company has further recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021, lease liabilities and right-of-use assets amounting Rs.45.57 lakhs.
This has resulted in a decrease in total equity as at 31 March 2021 by 6.74 lakhs (1 Apnl 2020 - Nil) and decrease in the profit for the year
ended 31 March 2021 by Rs. 6.74 lakhs

Impact on Cash flows

As per IND-AS 116, the Company has recognised a lease liability under cash flow from financing activities, Under previous IGAAP it has
been recorded under cash flow from operating activities.

2 Reclassification of loan to related parties

Under previous GAAP, loan provided to ESOP trust amounting Rs.4.48 lakhs has reduced from equity. As per Ind-AS, Company has shown
it seperately.

[+

Adjustment for deemed cost exemption on investment in subsidiaries

The Company elected to apply the previous GAAP carrying amount as deemed cost as at 1 April 2020 for investment in subsdiaries. Under
the previous GAAP, during the year ended March 21 impairment on Investments written back resulting increase amount of Investment. As a
result of this change total equity for the year ended 31 March 2021 increased by Rs. 4784.96 lakhs with corresponding increase in profit for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

—

Remeasurements of post-cmployment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remecasurements i.c. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous
GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 31
March 2021 increased by Rs.4.30 lakhs with corresponding decrease in other comprehensive income. There is no impact on the total equity as
at 31 March 2020.

n

Translation difference on long term monetary assets

Under Ind AS, for long term monetary assests mentioned in para 29A of Ind AS 21, Company has exercised the option mentioned in that
paragraph prospectively resulting exchange difference in respect of those items are deemed to zero at the date of transition . As a result of this
change, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 increased by Rs.80 lakhs. There is no impact on the total equity as at | April 2020.

6 Retained earnings

Retained earnings as at 1 April 2020 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments

o o
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7 Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard
requires or permits otherwise, ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit
and loss as 'other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.
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